
  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
February 20, 2018 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, February 20, 2018 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to attend all 
meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a Public Hearing is 
scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. February 5, 2018 City Council Minutes 
 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in nature and 
for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda may be 
removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are 
then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will 
then poll the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda 
is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, 
resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. 
Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special 
accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
February 20, 2018 

PUBLIC HEARING – None  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
PacifiCorp Franchise Hearing         Action 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Transportation System Plan Update       Informational 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Department Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin  Informational 
a. January 2018 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens      Informational 
a. January 2018 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick     Informational 
a. January 2018 Operating Report 

 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman   Informational 
a. January 2018 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser      Informational 
a. January 2018 Activities 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 

BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – March 5, 2018 
a. Annual OLCC License Renewals 

 
 

ADJOURN 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
February 20, 2018 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
FEBRUARY 2018 

Monday February 19 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday February 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday February 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Thursday February 22 Pick Your Park -Mill Creek Park  6:00 p.m. Community Center 
Monday February 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MARCH 2018 
Monday March 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday March 6 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday March 9 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday March 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday March 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday March 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday March 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

APRIL 2018 
Monday April 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 3 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday April 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday April 13 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday April 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday April 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday April 30 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
MAY 2018 

Tuesday May 1 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday May 7 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 7 City Council Upon Adjournment of Budget Committee 
Tuesday May 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday May 11 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday May 14 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 15 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday May 16 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday May 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday May 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 31 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday May 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 3 
February 5, 2018 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

February 5, 2018 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End: 8:56 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Mark Kronquist Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development (excused) 
Councilor Christopher Molin Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Brian Quigley  Janna Moser, Library Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 Wallace Lien, Acting City Attorney 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, 

Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
None. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Marion Barker, 2155 Kindle Way 

 
 

b. Patty Armstrong, 2155 Nighthawk Avenue 
 
 
 
 

c. North Santiam School Board Update 
 
 

d. Stayton Public Library Electronic Reader Board 

 
Mr. Barker spoke expressed continued concerns 
regarding the known drug house on Kindle Way.  
 
Ms. Armstrong shared her concerns about the location of 
the teen center and its proximity to the known drug 
house on Kindle Way. As well as her concerns with living 
in the neighborhood with continued drug activity. 
 
Members of the North Santiam School District Board 
provided an update. 
 
Ms. Moser shared information about the newly installed 
electronic reader board at the Library.  

Consent Agenda 
a. January 16, 2018 City Council Minutes 

 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by Councilor 
Usselman, to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Motion passed 5:0. 

Business from the Mayor  
a. Committee and Commissions Appointments 

• Budget Committee – Paige Hook 
• Planning Commission – Paige Hook 

 
b. Committee and Commissions Reappointments 

• Public Safety Commission – Cari Sessums 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by Councilor 
Kronquist, to appoint Paige Hook to the Budget 
Committee and Planning Commission, and reappoint Cari 
Sessums to the Public Safety Commission. Motion passed 
5:0.  

Public Hearing None. 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 3 
February 5, 2018 

Unfinished Business None. 
New Business 
PacifiCorp Franchise Hearing 
a. Staff Report 
 

 
 
 

b. Questions of Staff by Council 
 
 

c. Presentation by PacifiCorp 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

d. Questions of PacifiCorp by Council 
 
 
 
 

e. Rebuttal by Staff 
 
 

f. Deliberations by Council 
 

 
 
 
g. Council Decision 
 

  
 
Mr. Lien reviewed the purpose of the PacifiCorp Franchise 
Hearing. Mr. Ludwick provided a review of facts for the 
Kindle Way project and costs associated. Mr. Lien spoke 
about remedies and options available to the Council.  
 
Council discussion surrounding cost of moving poles and 
placing conduit underground.  
 
Alan Meyer, Regional Manager with PacifiCorp, shared 
background on why PacifiCorp disagrees with moving the 
poles at their expense.  
 
Kim McGair, attorney for PacifiCorp, provided a handout 
of additional documents to be entered into the record. 
Ms. McGair shared PacifiCorp’s stance on why they are 
not financially responsible for moving the poles.  
 
Council inquired if PacifiCorp would provide the same 
response if Marion County requested the power poles be 
moved. Ms. McGair responded yes. Discussion continued 
centering on case law.  
 
Mr. Lien provided rebuttal to Ms. McGair’s statements 
and written materials. 
 
Council discussion surrounding the 2009 Warranty Deed 
and easement value.  
 
The Council took a brief recess from 8:40 p.m. to 8:45 p.m. 
 
Motion from Councilor Glidewell, seconded by Councilor 
Usselman, to find PacifiCorp in breach/violation of its 
Franchise Agreement (Ordinance No. 939) for its repeated 
refusal, without just cause, to move Poles #1-10 at its 
expenses to allow for the City’s capital improvement 
project to construct a new storm water detention facility 
and to bring Kindle Way up to collector standards as 
required by the Transportation Systems Plan. A penalty of 
$240 per day, beginning January 1, 2018 and continuing 
until such time as an agreement is reached for PacifiCorp 
to move Poles #1-10 shall be assessed. In addition, 
PacifiCorp is mandated to move Pole #1, and 
underground Poles #2-10 at its expense (less the City’s 
obligation for under-grounding) with said work being 
completed no later than June 1, 2018. Staff shall prepare 
an Order with findings of fact commensurate with this 
decision and bring it to the next Council meeting for 
adoption. Motion passed 3:2 (Quigley, Molin).  



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 3 
February 5, 2018 

Staff / Commission Reports None. 
Presentations / Comments From the Public Paige Hook, 2088 Quail Run Avenue, spoke briefly about 

her feelings on the PacifiCorp decision. 
Business from City Manager 
a. Annual Budget Calendar Fiscal Year 2018-19 

 
Mr. Campbell presented the draft Budget Calendar to the 
Council for 2018-19.  

Business from the Council Councilor Glidewell spoke briefly regarding the upcoming 
community meeting for Mill Creek Park.  
 
Councilor Quigley offered recognition to the Stayton 
Police Department for all their hard work. 
 
Councilor Kronquist asked Ms. Moser to provide an 
update on the recent Brews, Bites, and Books event at the 
Library and the Art Show happening in February. Ms. 
Moser offered a recap of recent events at the Library.  

Future Agenda Items – Tuesday, February 20, 2018 
a. Transportation Master Plan 
b. Total Compensation Study 
 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 20TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2018, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 

Date:   Attest:   
 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator    

 

Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
PacifiCorp Franchise Hearing  Page 1 of 1  
February 20, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Keith Campbell, City Manager 
 
DATE:   February 20, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  PacifiCorp Franchise Hearing 
  
     
ISSUE 
Adoption of the Final Order for PacifiCorp Franchise Hearing.  
 
ENCLOSURE(S) 

1. Order for Council with penalty fees 
2. Order for Council with no penalty fees 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
This matter came before the City Council on February 5, 2018 for the purpose of determining if 
PacifiCorp has breached its Electric Utility Franchise Agreement with the City (Ordinance No. 
939).  
 
A due process hearing was duly held pursuant to the terms of said Franchise Agreement. 
Attorney Kimberly McGair appeared on behalf of PacifiCorp, along with PacifiCorp Regional 
Manager Alan Meyer. The City appeared by and through its Special Counsel Wallace Lien and 
Public Works Director Lance Ludwick. The Governing Body voted 3:2 in finding that PacifiCorp 
breached/violated its Franchise Agreement with the City and assessed a $240 per day penalty 
beginning January 1, 2018.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
PacifiCorp has asked for a delay in the final decision to discuss alternatives with the City. Initial 
work on this project began over nine months ago, and initial construction was slated to begin 
six months ago. City staff is more than willing to discuss alternatives with PacifiCorp, but a delay 
is not predicated or necessary in order to engage in these discussions. Staff recommends 
adoption of the order. 
 
MOTION(S) 

1. Motion to approve the Order as presented to Council.  



Page 1 - Order 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

In the Matter of the Determination of  ) 
Breach of Electric Utility Franchise   ) 
Agreement, Ordinance 939 by:  ) 

) 
PACIFICORP    )  Order No. 2018- _____ 

) 
For Refusal to Move its Poles as Requested ) 
by the City in Conjunction with City  ) 
Initiated Street and Storm Water   ) 
Improvements     ) 

 
O R D E R 

 
 This matter came on regularly before the Stayton City Council on February 5, 2018 for 
the purpose of determining if PacifiCorp has breached its Electric Utility Franchise Agreement 
with the City. A due process hearing was duly held pursuant to the terms of said Franchise 
Agreement, Ms. Kimberley Hanks McGair, attorney, appearing on behalf of PacifiCorp. With 
her was Mr. Alan Meyer, Regional Manager for PacifiCorp. The City appeared by and through 
its Special Counsel, Wallace W. Lien, and its Public Works Director, Lance Ludwick. 
 

I.  Record Designation 
 
 The file in this matter, which constitutes the entire Record of these proceeds, includes the 
following documents: 
 

1. June 8, 2017 Letter from City to PacifiCorp advising of need to move the poles. 
2. June 26, 2017 Email from PacifiCorp refusing to pay for move of Pole #1. 
3. June 30, 2017 Email from PacifiCorp advising of the costs of pole moving. 
4. October 16, 2017 Letter from City to PacifiCorp demanding the poles be moved. 
5. October 23, 2017 Email response from PacifiCorp attorney advising they will not 

pay for moving the poles as they were previously in a private easement. 
6. November 1, 2017 Email from PacifiCorp advising they will not move Poles #2-

10 either. 
7. December 18, 2017 Letter from City to PacifiCorp demanding all 10 poles be 

moved. 
8. January 5, 2018 Letter from McGair objecting to the City’s position. 
9. January 31, 2018 Staff Report. 
10. February 1, 2018 (dated January 30, 2018) McGair hearing memo. 



Page 2 - Order 

11. Assessor Map Mark up of Prior Easement rights. 
12. Partition Plat No. 90-48 shows the dedication of the additional 15 feet of right of 

way along Shaff Road being dedicated to the City. 
13. Survey No. 021297, done for Louie Kindle on January 20, 1970 which shows 

Kindle Way connecting to Shaff Road and being 29.7' width. 
14. Warranty Deed from Kirk Kindle dedicating Kindle Way to the City on January 5, 

2009. Recorded at R3029, P285. 
15. Minutes of the Council meeting of February 5, 2018. 

 
II. Findings and Conclusions 

 
 The following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law are hereby adopted by the City 
to support and justify its decision in this matter: 
 

1. The City has been planning and implementing its new storm water detention 
facility and street widening project for that section of Kindle Way from the Shaff 
Road intersection north to the intersection of Junco Street for the last year or 
more.  The project involves the purchase, rezoning and annexation of land by the 
City for the purpose of creating a new regional storm water detention facility and 
adjoining public park. Included in this project are certain street improvements 
necessary to the intersection, and along the above described section of Kindle 
Way, as well as construction of storm water piping and ditching to feed the new 
detention facility.  Improvements of Kindle Way to collector status are mandated 
by the Stayton Transportation Systems Plan, and are being paid for from City 
Transportation SDC funds. 

2. Early on in the project, staff and designers identified that certain PacifiCorp 
power poles would need to be moved in order to accommodate the new City 
project.  Those poles that need to be moved are identified in the attached drawing 
marked as Exhibit A.  A total of 10 power poles are involved at this time 
beginning at the intersection of Shaff Road and Kindle Way (Pole #1), and 
running north along Kindle Way to its intersection with Junco Street.  (Poles #2-
10). 

3. Pole #1 is a high voltage transmission pole that has to have special treatment in 
the move.  Poles #2-10 are normal power poles and require nothing extra in order 
to move.  The current project planning requires Pole #1 to be moved to the 
northeast to the edge of the new Shaff Road right of way.  It will remain an above 
ground pole. 

4. Poles #2-10 will be moved and placed underground along the eastern portion of 
the Kindle Way right of way.  The City has the responsibility for the trenching, 
and laying the vaults and conduit in order to get the power lines underground, but 
it is the responsibility of PacifiCorp to remove the poles, which would otherwise 
be in the middle of the street, to run the wire inside the conduit and make the 



Page 3 - Order 

necessary electrical connections.  The City’s underground obligation is a part of 
the project budget, and will also be paid for with City Transportation SDC funds. 

5. Section 4.12.030(3)(a)(iv) of the Franchise Agreement provides that in cases of 
capital improvement projects undertaken by the City, PacifiCorp shall at its 
expense convert existing overhead distribution facilities to underground.  The 
detention and street project involved here are a capital improvement project of the 
City.  PacifiCorp is allowed to be reimbursed for the costs of conversion from 
overhead to underground from ratepayers pursuant to OAR 860-22-0046. 

6. Section 4.12.040(2) of the Franchise Agreement regarding relocation of facilities 
provides that PacifiCorp shall, at its expense, relocate any of its equipment or 
facilities that are required to promote the public interest of the City by reason of 
traffic conditions, public safety, street construction, installation of storm sewer 
lines, or any other type of structures or public improvements by City.  The City 
cannot allow power poles to remain located in the middle of a newly 
reconstructed street, therefore the requirement for them to be moved promotes and 
protects the public safety, and allows for the proper construction of Kindle Way 
and its new improvements, including the new storm water facilities constructed as 
part of the street improvement and construction of the new detention facility.  
Based on this provision of the Franchise Agreement, the City finds and concludes 
that PacifiCorp is responsible for the costs of moving the 10 poles involved in the 
City project. 

7. On June 8, 2017, the City sent an official written demand to have PacifiCorp 
move the poles.  On June 26, 2017, PacifiCorp, through Eddie Steiner advised the 
City that PacifiCorp refused to move pole #1 because it was, or had been, in a 
private easement.  At this point Mr. Steiner had no issue with the moving of poles 
#2-10. Upon being advised that the City did not agree with his position, and 
continued City demands to have the affected poles moved, an attorney for 
PacifiCorp, sent an email to the Acting City Attorney on October 23, 2017 
affirming that the position of PacifiCorp was that the franchise obligation to move 
the poles did not apply where PacifiCorp had a prior private easement.  Thereafter 
on November 1, 2017, Mr. Steiner advised the City that PacifiCorp had 
discovered that poles #2-10 were, or had been, in a private easement, therefore 
PacifiCorp was then refusing to move those poles as well. 

8. Staff originally advised all utility providers that utilities from the intersection of 
Shaff Road and Kindle Way would have to move their facilities by December 31, 
2017.  Northwest Natural Gas, Stayton Telephone and Wave Cable have all 
agreed to move their facilities at their own expense, and Staff anticipates that all 
those moves will be fully accomplished by June 1, 2018. 

9. The City stormwater detention project, including the required improvements to 
Kindle Way, needs to proceed as soon as practical.  Staff believes it is necessary 
to have the affected power poles moved by June 1, 2018 in order to keep the 
detention/street project on schedule for completion before the end of 2018.  
PacifiCorp representatives at the hearing indicated that from a construction 
standpoint, it could have the poles moved by that date. 



Page 4 - Order 

10. PacifiCorp’s refusal to comply with the Franchise Agreement in moving the 
affected power poles for a City project amounts to a breach thereof. 

11. PacifiCorp’s sole reason for refusing to comply with the mandates of the 
Franchise Agreement is that the poles are, or had been previously authorized by a 
private easement extended to PacifiCorp by local property owners. However, 
there is no language in the Franchise Agreement that gives PacifiCorp grandfather 
rights, or an exemption to compliance because the affected poles were under a 
prior private easement.  There is one exception (for service drops) to that rule, but 
it does not apply in this case. 

12. Without specific language in the Franchise Agreement that would give PacifiCorp 
the right to be exempt from the moving requirements for a City project, no such 
right exists.  This Franchise Agreement is specific, and the rights and obligations 
of the parties are stated fully and completely therein.  For rights to exist, they 
must be negotiated, agreed to and written into the Franchise Agreement.  None of 
that has happened for a private easement exemption. 

13. The City interprets the Franchise Agreement to provide for no such exception.  
The Franchise Agreement requires PacifiCorp to follow the mandates of the 
Franchise Agreement even when an easement is involved.  Section 4.12.010(3)(h) 
of the Agreement defines an Easement as a public right-of-way, private utility 
easement on private or public property, or public utility easement on public or 
private property but not including a private utility easement for a customer's 
service drop.  There is nothing in this language that exempts PacifiCorp 
performance for anything other than a service drop, which is not the situation 
here. 

14. Section 4.12.040(1)(a) Use of Public Ways (Excavation and Restoration) of the 
Franchise Agreement provides that PacifiCorp shall comply with all applicable 
ordinances, municipal codes, rules or regulations that may pertain to its activities 
within easements, public places and public rights-of-way of the City.  This 
language supports the City’s interpretation that PacifiCorp is obligated to move 
the affected poles even when those poles were at some prior time located within a 
private easement. 

15. Section 4.12.040(1)(b) of the Franchise Agreement provides that all structures, 
lines, and equipment erected by PacifiCorp within the City shall be located so as 
to cause minimum interference, with the proper use of city streets.  There is no 
limitation or exception here for prior private easements.  This provision is clear 
that if PacifiCorp has equipment within the City, and that equipment is located in 
such a manner as to cause interference with the proper use of a street within the 
City, PacifiCorp falls out of compliance with the Franchise Agreement.  The City 
finds and concludes that leaving the poles in their current location, which places 
them in the paved travel surface of the road, thereby providing a safety 
obstruction to the traveling public, will cause significant interference with the 
proper use of Shaff Road and Kindle Way. 

16. Section 4.12.040(2) of the Franchise Agreement regarding relocation of facilities 
provides that PacifiCorp shall, at its expense, relocate any of its equipment or 



Page 5 - Order 

facilities that are required to promote the public interest of the City by reason of 
traffic conditions, public safety, street construction, installation of storm sewer 
lines, or any other type of structures or public improvements by City.  This 
provision also contains no exemption for prior private easements, and is clear 
language that PacifiCorp has the obligation to relocate its poles when such is 
needed due to traffic conditions, new street construction and installation of storm 
sewer facilities.  As noted above, the City finds and concludes that this provision 
requires PacifiCorp to move the poles at its expense, and refusal to do so amounts 
to a breach of the Franchise Agreement. 

17. Subsection 4.12.040(2)(d) goes on to state that if PacifiCorp fails to comply with 
any requirement of the City pursuant to this section, the City may remove or 
relocate the facilities at PacifiCorp's expense, unless said removal or relocation 
would be in violation of any portions of ORS 757.800 and ORS 757.805.  These 
ORS citations are to high voltage power lines and apply only to Pole #1. 

18. Section (2)(b) of 4.12.040 of the Franchise Agreement requires the City to give 
PacifiCorp a written request to relocate the poles.  That request was made 
repeatedly, beginning with  on June 8, 2017.  PacifiCorp was given until January 
31, 2018 to enter into a formal agreement for it to move the affected poles.  At the 
hearing, Mr. Meyer, speaking on behalf of PacifiCorp advised the Council that the 
only way the poles would ever get moved is if the City paid for it.  This statement 
is manifest of the hard line position taken by PacifiCorp since June 2017 when the 
City request was first made to them.  PacifiCorp’s actions are considered to be an 
anticipatory breach sufficient to declare the breach now, and to move to compel 
compliance. 

19. The approximate cost of moving Pole #1 is between $75,000 and $100,000 
because it is a high voltage transmission line pole.  This pole would remain an 
above ground pole, and has to be moved by PacifiCorp, and cannot be moved by 
the City.  This is the approximate cost that must be paid by PacifiCorp to remain 
in compliance with the Franchise Agreement. 

20. The approximate cost of moving Poles #2-10 is $165,000.   This cost is a 
combination of the costs to PacifiCorp of $110,000 to remove the poles and do 
the required electrical connections, and the $55,000 cost the City is responsible 
for placing the moved lines underground.  The City is responsible for this $55,000 
for trenching, vaults and conduit for Poles #2-10, regardless of which entity is 
responsible for moving the poles. 

21. The total cost for moving all 10 poles involved in this case, and under-grounding 
Poles #2-10 is between $240,000 and $265,000.  The costs are allocated as 
follows:  the City is responsible for approximately $55,000, and PacifiCorp is 
responsible for the remaining costs of between $185,000 and $210,000.  These 
costs are adjusted slightly for cost increases over time from estimates provided to 
the City from PacifiCorp. 

22. According to Section 4.12.070(6) of the Franchise Agreement, the City has all the 
remedies available to it under the Franchise Agreement, as well as all remedies 
available at law or in equity. 



Page 6 - Order 

23. Upon a finding of a violation of a material provision of the Franchise Agreement, 
the City may assess a penalty of $240 per day for breach without just cause.  
Section 4.12.070(9)(a) The penalty would begin on January 1, 2018, as that is the 
date given by Staff for the work to be completed.  Since no work was done, the 
penalty would run for every day from January 1, 2018 until the work is 
completed.  The City may pursuant to Section 4.12.040(2)(a) also mandate 
PacifiCorp move Pole #1, and underground Poles #2-10 at its expense no later 
than June 1, 2018. 

24. There is nothing in the Franchise Agreement that even remotely suggests that the 
provisions of the Franchise Agreement do not apply when there is a prior 
easement for the location of a power facility unless that easement is for a service 
drop.  If the Franchise Agreement were intended to allow such an exemption, it 
would have been specifically written into the Agreement, and not left up to 
interpretation or assumption. 

25. Easements are between PacifiCorp and private property owners, and have nothing 
to do with the City.  That an easement once existed for the location of a power 
pole means nothing when the adjacent right of way is expanded by the City to 
upgrade a street, leaving the easement location of the pole in the middle of the 
street.  The entire relocation of pole provisions in the Franchise Agreement are 
intended to address that situation.  Where the pole movement is caused by private 
development, PacifiCorp can recoup its costs from the private developer.  
However, when the pole movement is required by a city initiated and funded 
capital improvement project, the obligation to move the poles lies with 
PacifiCorp.  That cost is either assumed as a cost of the franchise, or may be 
passed on to the ratepayers consistent with OAR 860-22-0046. 

26. PacifiCorp argues that it gave good consideration for acquiring the easements the 
affected poles are located in, and that those easements still exist and are viable.  
However, the easements placed in the Record of these proceedings for the 
affected property all show that the good and valuable consideration given by 
PacifiCorp was zero, that is to say PacifiCorp actually paid nothing for those 
Easements in the first place.  The City disputes that the easements are still valid.  
The local owners who granted the easements no longer own the land upon which 
the easement is located.  The easement area specified in those original easements 
are all now in the public right of way, owned by the City.  In addition, PacifiCorp 
tendered for this Record the Deed from Kirk A. Kindle to the City which 
dedicated the Kindle Way right of way to the City, and that deed did not disclose 
the existence of any underlying PacifiCorp easement rights for its poles, nor was 
any such rights excepted.  The result of this deed is that the City obtained the 
Kindle Way right of way free and clear of any encumbrance, including the 
PacifiCorp prior easement. If PacifiCorp has an issue with the easement rights it 
obtained from the local property owners who subsequently conveyed the 
underlying land to the City for street right of way, such should be taken up with 
those owners, and not by a blatant refusal to comply with the clear mandates of 
the Franchise Agreement. 



Page 7 - Order 

27. The City is not attempting to take away any rights of PacifiCorp in this matter.  
PacifiCorp had the right to place its poles originally pursuant to private 
easements.  The City, through its Franchise Agreement, allows PacifiCorp to 
retain the right to provide electric service within the public right of way.  The 
question is not if PacifiCorp has the right to place and maintain its service along 
Kindle Way, the question is who pays for moving the poles.  The Franchise 
Agreement controls pole location, and in this situation, it mandates the cost to 
move the poles is to be borne by PacifiCorp.  The Franchise Agreement allows for 
the service to continue within the right of way, only at a different location, which 
right is taken advantage of by PacifiCorp, which in turn then refuses to comply 
with the same agreement’s provision requiring them to pay for the cost of the 
move. 

28. PacifiCorp argues that ODOT and many other Cities and Counties do not require 
PacifiCorp to pay for poles to be moved where the poles were originally placed 
pursuant to a private easement.  The City finds this argument to be not relevant, as 
this matter is controlled by the terms and conditions of the negotiated Franchise 
Agreement which provides the cost of moving the poles under these 
circumstances lies with PacifiCorp.  What other governmental entities do has no 
binding effect on the City. 

29. PacifiCorp also alleges that the general rule of law is that poles originally placed 
pursuant to a private easement have to be moved at the expense of the City.  This 
general rule is not disputed, however it does not apply to this situation.  The 
Franchise Agreement in this case was negotiated in 2011 with full knowledge and 
understanding of the general rule of law.  The Franchise Agreement has the power 
and authority to modify or eliminate entirely the general rule of law if that 
modification is done, or not done, in the drafting and adoption of the Franchise 
Agreement.  The Franchise Agreement is a legally binding contract between the 
City and PacifiCorp.  The provisions of the Franchise Agreement abrogate the 
general rule.  Had the parties at the time of negotiation of the Franchise 
Agreement determined that the general rule of law should control the obligations 
of PacifiCorp and the City, the Franchise Agreement could have been silent on the 
issue of moving poles, or alternatively, the general rule could have been 
specifically written into the Franchise Agreement.  However, neither situation 
occurred.  The Franchise Agreement changed the general rule by contract, and 
eliminated it from application here, and replaced it with the negotiated terms of 
the Franchise Agreement.  In this instance then, the Franchise Agreement 
controls, and the general rule of law is not applicable.  Even PacifiCorp 
recognized in its presentation materials, that the City has the right to restrict and 
control PacifiCorp’s rights in a Franchise Agreement, yet it still refuses to comply 
with that Agreement. 

30. PacifiCorp alleges that the City’s requirement for it to bear the cost of moving the 
affected poles amounts to a taking without just compensation.  The City rejects 
that proposition.  The Franchise Agreement, within which the move provisions 
are located, was negotiated at arm’s length between the parties.  The consideration 
for the Franchise Agreement is the right of PacifiCorp to use the City rights of 



Page 8 - Order 

way.  The Franchise Agreement provides the consideration for the move 
obligations, and there is no taking without just compensation.  PacifiCorp is 
compensation by being allowed to hold and operate its electrical utility franchise 
in the City. 

31. There is some argument that the affected poles are not located in the right of way 
now, therefore the Franchise Agreement does not apply.  This argument is 
rejected.  The City finds that the Franchise Agreement is applicable throughout 
and within the city limits.  The City further finds that the survey evidence is clear 
that Pole #1 is partially within the Kindle Way right of way, and partially in the 
Shaff Road right of way.  Poles #2-10 are located in the Kindle Way right of way 
by virtue of the Deed from Kirk Kindle submitted by PacifiCorp.  At all times 
relevant to this proceeding, Poles # 1-10 have been, and continue to be located 
within a public right of way owned and/or controlled by the City. 

 
III. Decision and Order 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, based on the above Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the 
City Council does hereby find as follows: 
 

1. PacifiCorp is in breach/violation of Electric Utility Franchise Agreement 
(Ordinance 939) for its repeated refusal, without just cause, constituting an 
anticipatory breach, to move Poles #1 - 10, as shown on the attached Exhibit A, at 
its own expense as required by the terms of the Franchise Agreement as explained 
above. 

2. PacifiCorp is hereby mandated to move Pole #1 at its expense to a location 
specified by the City, and to move Poles #2 - 10 at its expense (less the City’s 
obligation for under-grounding the line along Kindle Way), and to have all said 
work completed no later than June 1, 2018. 

3. Staff is directed to use all reasonable means to enforce this Order. 
4. A penalty of $240 per day is hereby assessed against PacifiCorp, beginning 

January 1, 2018, and continuing until such time as the move of Poles #1 - 10 is 
complete. 

 
 DATED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of February, 2018, by the Council in a vote of 
____ Ayes, and _____ Nays. 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Henry A. Porter, Mayor 



Page 1 - Order 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

In the Matter of the Determination of  ) 
Breach of Electric Utility Franchise   ) 
Agreement, Ordinance 939 by:  ) 

) 
PACIFICORP    )  Order No. 2018- _____ 

) 
For Refusal to Move its Poles as Requested ) 
by the City in Conjunction with City  ) 
Initiated Street and Storm Water   ) 
Improvements     ) 

 
O R D E R 

 
 This matter came on regularly before the Stayton City Council on February 5, 2018 for 
the purpose of determining if PacifiCorp has breached its Electric Utility Franchise Agreement 
with the City. A due process hearing was duly held pursuant to the terms of said Franchise 
Agreement, Ms. Kimberley Hanks McGair, attorney, appearing on behalf of PacifiCorp. With 
her was Mr. Alan Meyer, Regional Manager for PacifiCorp. The City appeared by and through 
its Special Counsel, Wallace W. Lien, and its Public Works Director, Lance Ludwick. 
 

I.  Record Designation 
 
 The file in this matter, which constitutes the entire Record of these proceeds, includes the 
following documents: 
 

1. June 8, 2017 Letter from City to PacifiCorp advising of need to move the poles. 
2. June 26, 2017 Email from PacifiCorp refusing to pay for move of Pole #1. 
3. June 30, 2017 Email from PacifiCorp advising of the costs of pole moving. 
4. October 16, 2017 Letter from City to PacifiCorp demanding the poles be moved. 
5. October 23, 2017 Email response from PacifiCorp attorney advising they will not 

pay for moving the poles as they were previously in a private easement. 
6. November 1, 2017 Email from PacifiCorp advising they will not move Poles #2-

10 either. 
7. December 18, 2017 Letter from City to PacifiCorp demanding all 10 poles be 

moved. 
8. January 5, 2018 Letter from McGair objecting to the City’s position. 
9. January 31, 2018 Staff Report. 
10. February 1, 2018 (dated January 30, 2018) McGair hearing memo. 



Page 2 - Order 

11. Assessor Map Mark up of Prior Easement rights. 
12. Partition Plat No. 90-48 shows the dedication of the additional 15 feet of right of 

way along Shaff Road being dedicated to the City. 
13. Survey No. 021297, done for Louie Kindle on January 20, 1970 which shows 

Kindle Way connecting to Shaff Road and being 29.7' width. 
14. Warranty Deed from Kirk Kindle dedicating Kindle Way to the City on January 5, 

2009. Recorded at R3029, P285. 
15. Minutes of the Council meeting of February 5, 2018. 

 
II. Findings and Conclusions 

 
 The following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law are hereby adopted by the City 
to support and justify its decision in this matter: 
 

1. The City has been planning and implementing its new storm water detention 
facility and street widening project for that section of Kindle Way from the Shaff 
Road intersection north to the intersection of Junco Street for the last year or 
more.  The project involves the purchase, rezoning and annexation of land by the 
City for the purpose of creating a new regional storm water detention facility and 
adjoining public park. Included in this project are certain street improvements 
necessary to the intersection, and along the above described section of Kindle 
Way, as well as construction of storm water piping and ditching to feed the new 
detention facility.  Improvements of Kindle Way to collector status are mandated 
by the Stayton Transportation Systems Plan, and are being paid for from City 
Transportation SDC funds. 

2. Early on in the project, staff and designers identified that certain PacifiCorp 
power poles would need to be moved in order to accommodate the new City 
project.  Those poles that need to be moved are identified in the attached drawing 
marked as Exhibit A.  A total of 10 power poles are involved at this time 
beginning at the intersection of Shaff Road and Kindle Way (Pole #1), and 
running north along Kindle Way to its intersection with Junco Street.  (Poles #2-
10). 

3. Pole #1 is a high voltage transmission pole that has to have special treatment in 
the move.  Poles #2-10 are normal power poles and require nothing extra in order 
to move.  The current project planning requires Pole #1 to be moved to the 
northeast to the edge of the new Shaff Road right of way.  It will remain an above 
ground pole. 

4. Poles #2-10 will be moved and placed underground along the eastern portion of 
the Kindle Way right of way.  The City has the responsibility for the trenching, 
and laying the vaults and conduit in order to get the power lines underground, but 
it is the responsibility of PacifiCorp to remove the poles, which would otherwise 
be in the middle of the street, to run the wire inside the conduit and make the 



Page 3 - Order 

necessary electrical connections.  The City’s underground obligation is a part of 
the project budget, and will also be paid for with City Transportation SDC funds. 

5. Section 4.12.030(3)(a)(iv) of the Franchise Agreement provides that in cases of 
capital improvement projects undertaken by the City, PacifiCorp shall at its 
expense convert existing overhead distribution facilities to underground.  The 
detention and street project involved here are a capital improvement project of the 
City.  PacifiCorp is allowed to be reimbursed for the costs of conversion from 
overhead to underground from ratepayers pursuant to OAR 860-22-0046. 

6. Section 4.12.040(2) of the Franchise Agreement regarding relocation of facilities 
provides that PacifiCorp shall, at its expense, relocate any of its equipment or 
facilities that are required to promote the public interest of the City by reason of 
traffic conditions, public safety, street construction, installation of storm sewer 
lines, or any other type of structures or public improvements by City.  The City 
cannot allow power poles to remain located in the middle of a newly 
reconstructed street, therefore the requirement for them to be moved promotes and 
protects the public safety, and allows for the proper construction of Kindle Way 
and its new improvements, including the new storm water facilities constructed as 
part of the street improvement and construction of the new detention facility.  
Based on this provision of the Franchise Agreement, the City finds and concludes 
that PacifiCorp is responsible for the costs of moving the 10 poles involved in the 
City project. 

7. On June 8, 2017, the City sent an official written demand to have PacifiCorp 
move the poles.  On June 26, 2017, PacifiCorp, through Eddie Steiner advised the 
City that PacifiCorp refused to move pole #1 because it was, or had been, in a 
private easement.  At this point Mr. Steiner had no issue with the moving of poles 
#2-10. Upon being advised that the City did not agree with his position, and 
continued City demands to have the affected poles moved, an attorney for 
PacifiCorp, sent an email to the Acting City Attorney on October 23, 2017 
affirming that the position of PacifiCorp was that the franchise obligation to move 
the poles did not apply where PacifiCorp had a prior private easement.  Thereafter 
on November 1, 2017, Mr. Steiner advised the City that PacifiCorp had 
discovered that poles #2-10 were, or had been, in a private easement, therefore 
PacifiCorp was then refusing to move those poles as well. 

8. Staff originally advised all utility providers that utilities from the intersection of 
Shaff Road and Kindle Way would have to move their facilities by December 31, 
2017.  Northwest Natural Gas, Stayton Telephone and Wave Cable have all 
agreed to move their facilities at their own expense, and Staff anticipates that all 
those moves will be fully accomplished by June 1, 2018. 

9. The City stormwater detention project, including the required improvements to 
Kindle Way, needs to proceed as soon as practical.  Staff believes it is necessary 
to have the affected power poles moved by June 1, 2018 in order to keep the 
detention/street project on schedule for completion before the end of 2018.  
PacifiCorp representatives at the hearing indicated that from a construction 
standpoint, it could have the poles moved by that date. 



Page 4 - Order 

10. PacifiCorp’s refusal to comply with the Franchise Agreement in moving the 
affected power poles for a City project amounts to a breach thereof. 

11. PacifiCorp’s sole reason for refusing to comply with the mandates of the 
Franchise Agreement is that the poles are, or had been previously authorized by a 
private easement extended to PacifiCorp by local property owners. However, 
there is no language in the Franchise Agreement that gives PacifiCorp grandfather 
rights, or an exemption to compliance because the affected poles were under a 
prior private easement.  There is one exception (for service drops) to that rule, but 
it does not apply in this case. 

12. Without specific language in the Franchise Agreement that would give PacifiCorp 
the right to be exempt from the moving requirements for a City project, no such 
right exists.  This Franchise Agreement is specific, and the rights and obligations 
of the parties are stated fully and completely therein.  For rights to exist, they 
must be negotiated, agreed to and written into the Franchise Agreement.  None of 
that has happened for a private easement exemption. 

13. The City interprets the Franchise Agreement to provide for no such exception.  
The Franchise Agreement requires PacifiCorp to follow the mandates of the 
Franchise Agreement even when an easement is involved.  Section 4.12.010(3)(h) 
of the Agreement defines an Easement as a public right-of-way, private utility 
easement on private or public property, or public utility easement on public or 
private property but not including a private utility easement for a customer's 
service drop.  There is nothing in this language that exempts PacifiCorp 
performance for anything other than a service drop, which is not the situation 
here. 

14. Section 4.12.040(1)(a) Use of Public Ways (Excavation and Restoration) of the 
Franchise Agreement provides that PacifiCorp shall comply with all applicable 
ordinances, municipal codes, rules or regulations that may pertain to its activities 
within easements, public places and public rights-of-way of the City.  This 
language supports the City’s interpretation that PacifiCorp is obligated to move 
the affected poles even when those poles were at some prior time located within a 
private easement. 

15. Section 4.12.040(1)(b) of the Franchise Agreement provides that all structures, 
lines, and equipment erected by PacifiCorp within the City shall be located so as 
to cause minimum interference, with the proper use of city streets.  There is no 
limitation or exception here for prior private easements.  This provision is clear 
that if PacifiCorp has equipment within the City, and that equipment is located in 
such a manner as to cause interference with the proper use of a street within the 
City, PacifiCorp falls out of compliance with the Franchise Agreement.  The City 
finds and concludes that leaving the poles in their current location, which places 
them in the paved travel surface of the road, thereby providing a safety 
obstruction to the traveling public, will cause significant interference with the 
proper use of Shaff Road and Kindle Way. 

16. Section 4.12.040(2) of the Franchise Agreement regarding relocation of facilities 
provides that PacifiCorp shall, at its expense, relocate any of its equipment or 



Page 5 - Order 

facilities that are required to promote the public interest of the City by reason of 
traffic conditions, public safety, street construction, installation of storm sewer 
lines, or any other type of structures or public improvements by City.  This 
provision also contains no exemption for prior private easements, and is clear 
language that PacifiCorp has the obligation to relocate its poles when such is 
needed due to traffic conditions, new street construction and installation of storm 
sewer facilities.  As noted above, the City finds and concludes that this provision 
requires PacifiCorp to move the poles at its expense, and refusal to do so amounts 
to a breach of the Franchise Agreement. 

17. Subsection 4.12.040(2)(d) goes on to state that if PacifiCorp fails to comply with 
any requirement of the City pursuant to this section, the City may remove or 
relocate the facilities at PacifiCorp's expense, unless said removal or relocation 
would be in violation of any portions of ORS 757.800 and ORS 757.805.  These 
ORS citations are to high voltage power lines and apply only to Pole #1. 

18. Section (2)(b) of 4.12.040 of the Franchise Agreement requires the City to give 
PacifiCorp a written request to relocate the poles.  That request was made 
repeatedly, beginning with  on June 8, 2017.  PacifiCorp was given until January 
31, 2018 to enter into a formal agreement for it to move the affected poles.  At the 
hearing, Mr. Meyer, speaking on behalf of PacifiCorp advised the Council that the 
only way the poles would ever get moved is if the City paid for it.  This statement 
is manifest of the hard line position taken by PacifiCorp since June 2017 when the 
City request was first made to them.  PacifiCorp’s actions are considered to be an 
anticipatory breach sufficient to declare the breach now, and to move to compel 
compliance. 

19. The approximate cost of moving Pole #1 is between $75,000 and $100,000 
because it is a high voltage transmission line pole.  This pole would remain an 
above ground pole, and has to be moved by PacifiCorp, and cannot be moved by 
the City.  This is the approximate cost that must be paid by PacifiCorp to remain 
in compliance with the Franchise Agreement. 

20. The approximate cost of moving Poles #2-10 is $165,000.   This cost is a 
combination of the costs to PacifiCorp of $110,000 to remove the poles and do 
the required electrical connections, and the $55,000 cost the City is responsible 
for placing the moved lines underground.  The City is responsible for this $55,000 
for trenching, vaults and conduit for Poles #2-10, regardless of which entity is 
responsible for moving the poles. 

21. The total cost for moving all 10 poles involved in this case, and under-grounding 
Poles #2-10 is between $240,000 and $265,000.  The costs are allocated as 
follows:  the City is responsible for approximately $55,000, and PacifiCorp is 
responsible for the remaining costs of between $185,000 and $210,000.  These 
costs are adjusted slightly for cost increases over time from estimates provided to 
the City from PacifiCorp. 

22. According to Section 4.12.070(6) of the Franchise Agreement, the City has all the 
remedies available to it under the Franchise Agreement, as well as all remedies 
available at law or in equity. 



Page 6 - Order 

23. Upon a finding of a violation of a material provision of the Franchise Agreement, 
the City may assess a penalty of $240 per day for breach without just cause.  
Section 4.12.070(9)(a) The penalty would begin on January 1, 2018, as that is the 
date given by Staff for the work to be completed.  Since no work was done, the 
penalty would run for every day from January 1, 2018 until the work is 
completed.  The City may pursuant to Section 4.12.040(2)(a) also mandate 
PacifiCorp move Pole #1, and underground Poles #2-10 at its expense no later 
than June 1, 2018. 

24. There is nothing in the Franchise Agreement that even remotely suggests that the 
provisions of the Franchise Agreement do not apply when there is a prior 
easement for the location of a power facility unless that easement is for a service 
drop.  If the Franchise Agreement were intended to allow such an exemption, it 
would have been specifically written into the Agreement, and not left up to 
interpretation or assumption. 

25. Easements are between PacifiCorp and private property owners, and have nothing 
to do with the City.  That an easement once existed for the location of a power 
pole means nothing when the adjacent right of way is expanded by the City to 
upgrade a street, leaving the easement location of the pole in the middle of the 
street.  The entire relocation of pole provisions in the Franchise Agreement are 
intended to address that situation.  Where the pole movement is caused by private 
development, PacifiCorp can recoup its costs from the private developer.  
However, when the pole movement is required by a city initiated and funded 
capital improvement project, the obligation to move the poles lies with 
PacifiCorp.  That cost is either assumed as a cost of the franchise, or may be 
passed on to the ratepayers consistent with OAR 860-22-0046. 

26. PacifiCorp argues that it gave good consideration for acquiring the easements the 
affected poles are located in, and that those easements still exist and are viable.  
However, the easements placed in the Record of these proceedings for the 
affected property all show that the good and valuable consideration given by 
PacifiCorp was zero, that is to say PacifiCorp actually paid nothing for those 
Easements in the first place.  The City disputes that the easements are still valid.  
The local owners who granted the easements no longer own the land upon which 
the easement is located.  The easement area specified in those original easements 
are all now in the public right of way, owned by the City.  In addition, PacifiCorp 
tendered for this Record the Deed from Kirk A. Kindle to the City which 
dedicated the Kindle Way right of way to the City, and that deed did not disclose 
the existence of any underlying PacifiCorp easement rights for its poles, nor was 
any such rights excepted.  The result of this deed is that the City obtained the 
Kindle Way right of way free and clear of any encumbrance, including the 
PacifiCorp prior easement. If PacifiCorp has an issue with the easement rights it 
obtained from the local property owners who subsequently conveyed the 
underlying land to the City for street right of way, such should be taken up with 
those owners, and not by a blatant refusal to comply with the clear mandates of 
the Franchise Agreement. 



Page 7 - Order 

27. The City is not attempting to take away any rights of PacifiCorp in this matter.  
PacifiCorp had the right to place its poles originally pursuant to private 
easements.  The City, through its Franchise Agreement, allows PacifiCorp to 
retain the right to provide electric service within the public right of way.  The 
question is not if PacifiCorp has the right to place and maintain its service along 
Kindle Way, the question is who pays for moving the poles.  The Franchise 
Agreement controls pole location, and in this situation, it mandates the cost to 
move the poles is to be borne by PacifiCorp.  The Franchise Agreement allows for 
the service to continue within the right of way, only at a different location, which 
right is taken advantage of by PacifiCorp, which in turn then refuses to comply 
with the same agreement’s provision requiring them to pay for the cost of the 
move. 

28. PacifiCorp argues that ODOT and many other Cities and Counties do not require 
PacifiCorp to pay for poles to be moved where the poles were originally placed 
pursuant to a private easement.  The City finds this argument to be not relevant, as 
this matter is controlled by the terms and conditions of the negotiated Franchise 
Agreement which provides the cost of moving the poles under these 
circumstances lies with PacifiCorp.  What other governmental entities do has no 
binding effect on the City. 

29. PacifiCorp also alleges that the general rule of law is that poles originally placed 
pursuant to a private easement have to be moved at the expense of the City.  This 
general rule is not disputed, however it does not apply to this situation.  The 
Franchise Agreement in this case was negotiated in 2011 with full knowledge and 
understanding of the general rule of law.  The Franchise Agreement has the power 
and authority to modify or eliminate entirely the general rule of law if that 
modification is done, or not done, in the drafting and adoption of the Franchise 
Agreement.  The Franchise Agreement is a legally binding contract between the 
City and PacifiCorp.  The provisions of the Franchise Agreement abrogate the 
general rule.  Had the parties at the time of negotiation of the Franchise 
Agreement determined that the general rule of law should control the obligations 
of PacifiCorp and the City, the Franchise Agreement could have been silent on the 
issue of moving poles, or alternatively, the general rule could have been 
specifically written into the Franchise Agreement.  However, neither situation 
occurred.  The Franchise Agreement changed the general rule by contract, and 
eliminated it from application here, and replaced it with the negotiated terms of 
the Franchise Agreement.  In this instance then, the Franchise Agreement 
controls, and the general rule of law is not applicable.  Even PacifiCorp 
recognized in its presentation materials, that the City has the right to restrict and 
control PacifiCorp’s rights in a Franchise Agreement, yet it still refuses to comply 
with that Agreement. 

30. PacifiCorp alleges that the City’s requirement for it to bear the cost of moving the 
affected poles amounts to a taking without just compensation.  The City rejects 
that proposition.  The Franchise Agreement, within which the move provisions 
are located, was negotiated at arm’s length between the parties.  The consideration 
for the Franchise Agreement is the right of PacifiCorp to use the City rights of 



Page 8 - Order 

way.  The Franchise Agreement provides the consideration for the move 
obligations, and there is no taking without just compensation.  PacifiCorp is 
compensation by being allowed to hold and operate its electrical utility franchise 
in the City. 

31. There is some argument that the affected poles are not located in the right of way 
now, therefore the Franchise Agreement does not apply.  This argument is 
rejected.  The City finds that the Franchise Agreement is applicable throughout 
and within the city limits.  The City further finds that the survey evidence is clear 
that Pole #1 is partially within the Kindle Way right of way, and partially in the 
Shaff Road right of way.  Poles #2-10 are located in the Kindle Way right of way 
by virtue of the Deed from Kirk Kindle submitted by PacifiCorp.  At all times 
relevant to this proceeding, Poles # 1-10 have been, and continue to be located 
within a public right of way owned and/or controlled by the City. 

 
III. Decision and Order 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, based on the above Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, the 
City Council does hereby find as follows: 
 

1. PacifiCorp is in breach/violation of Electric Utility Franchise Agreement 
(Ordinance 939) for its repeated refusal, without just cause, constituting an 
anticipatory breach, to move Poles #1 - 10, as shown on the attached Exhibit A, at 
its own expense as required by the terms of the Franchise Agreement as explained 
above. 

2. PacifiCorp is hereby mandated to move Pole #1 at its expense to a location 
specified by the City, and to move Poles #2 - 10 at its expense (less the City’s 
obligation for under-grounding the line along Kindle Way), and to have all said 
work completed no later than June 1, 2018. 

3. Staff is directed to use all reasonable means to enforce this Order. 
 
 DATED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of February, 2018, by the Council in a vote of 
____ Ayes, and _____ Nays. 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Henry A. Porter, Mayor 



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

THRU: Keith Campbell, City Administrator 

FROM: Lance S. Ludwick, P.E.  Public Works Director 

DATE: February 20th, 2018 

SUBJECT: Transportation System Plan Update 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update will include a detailed analysis of current conditions 
and future needs, recommendations to meet these needs, and cost estimates for the 
recommended improvements. 
 
The project was advertised competitively on December 20th, 2017, in the Daily Journal of 
Commerce.  The City of Stayton received one (1) sealed bid by the bid closing deadline of 
January 25th, 2018, from Kittelson & Associates of Portland, Oregon. 
 
The City has experienced steady growth over the past several decades but growth has substantially 
slowed during the past ten years.  The current TSP was completed in 2004, and was produced 
during a time of more substantial growth and assumed that growth would continue.  The plan 
includes a number of recommendations that no longer seem necessary or feasible for construction 
within a 20-year planning horizon. 
 
The City updated its Comprehensive Plan in 2013, with a revised Comprehensive Plan Map adopted 
at that time.  The assumptions for development patterns included within the 2004 TSP are no 
longer in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan Map.  The 2004 TSP includes a number of 
recommendations for improvements to streets that are Marion County-maintained streets.  These 
improvements do not have the support of Marion County.    
 

AWARD OF CONTRACT 
Transportation System Plan Update 
 



The objective of the TSP Update is to develop working documents for planning, programming, and 
financing improvements to the community’s transportation system.  The City desires to effectively 
manage growth and comply with the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), integrate transportation 
and land use planning and encourage transportation-efficient land uses, assure that the TSP meets 
the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP) and the TPR standards, and further involve the community in the 
planning and implementation process.  Essential to this goal is a plan that accurately reflects 
current facility needs and demands, identifies future needs, and recommends specific 
improvements to meet those needs within the context of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan and 
reflects the most recent population projections for the community. 
 
The TSP Planning Area includes the entire Stayton Urban Growth Boundary, but needs to recognize 
conditions, trends and development activity beyond the UGB including key highway intersections 
outside of the UGB and the neighboring community of Sublimity.  The study area will include 
transportation facilities that are under a number of different jurisdictions, including streets and 
highways under local, county and state jurisdiction and privately operated railroad and pipeline 
facilities. The Consultant will be responsible for coordination of the various levels of government as 
well as coordinating the public’s involvement in the development of the plan. 
 
Project objectives include: 

A. A review and evaluation of existing plans, policies, standards and laws that are relevant to 
the update of the 2004 TSP for the Stayton UGB.  This review is intended to ensure that the 
City’s TSP reflects and is consistent with local and state transportation policies and 
standards, and is coordinated with the plans of Marion County. 

B. Recommend changes to existing transportation goals and policies, and transportation 
system elements that will improve the transportation system and meet the transportation 
needs of the community for the next twenty years. 

C. An updated examination of existing land uses to identify current development patterns that 
influence the use of today’s transportation system and lay the foundation for future 
community growth.   

D. An updated analysis of the existing transportation system including an inventory and 
evaluation to identify opportunities and constraints and to provide the basis for developing 
transportation improvement recommendations.   

E. Update future projections, development and evaluation of alternatives and an assessment 
of options for improving the transportation system to accommodate anticipated traffic 
growth.   

AWARD OF CONTRACT 
Transportation System Plan Update 
 



F. Update the funding aspects of the 2004 TSP that explain how the updated list of 
transportation improvement projects identified in the capital improvement program will be 
funded so the transportation system improvement projects can be built.  

 
Kittelson & Associates, along with their partner Angelo Planning Group, have assembled a team 
of transportation and land use experts specialized in preparing transportation system plans.   
 
The City has experience working with this consultant for other projects.  See their attached 
proposal along with their fee schedule.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The estimated fee to complete the TSP Update is $144,148.  The consultant will maintain the 
rates listed in their fee schedule through the duration of the project. 

AWARD OF CONTRACT 
Transportation System Plan Update 
 



ATTACHMENT  A





































































   ATTACHMENT B



ATTACHMENT C



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Cindy Chauran, Associate Accountant 
   Elizabeth Baldwin, Utility Billing Clerk 
 
DATE:   February 20, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Finance Department Report 
  
 
 January 2018 December 2017 

 
Number of Bills Mailed 2,364 2,375 

Number of Bills Emailed 322 306 

Number of Bills on Auto-Pay 550 544 

Delinquent Notices Sent Out 513 550 

Courtesy Delinquent Notices Sent to Landlords 168 166 

Notified of Impending Shut-Off & Penalty 119 128 

Customers Issued Payment Extensions 24 18 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment 17 16 

Services Still Disconnected 0 0 

 
Number of Checks Issued 329 140 

Total Amount of Checks $266,376.71 $197,401.95 
 



 
Monthly Staff Report  Page 1 of 1  
February 20, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:   February 20, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Staff Report 
  
     
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of January 
2018. 
  
 January 

2018 
Year to Date 

2018 
January  

2017 
Year to Date 

2017 
     

Police Activity 745 745 829 829 
Investigated Incidents 186 186 336 336 
Citations/Warning 100/154 100/154 95/187 95/187 
Traffic Accidents 8 8 5 5 
Juvenile Abuse 2 2 1 1 
Arrests 37 37 34 34 
Ordinance Complaints 50 50 37 37 
Reserve Volunteer Hrs. 137 137 180.83 180.83 
Citizen Volunteer Hrs. 0 0 23 23 
Peer Court Referrals: 3 3 4 4 

     
   







 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
February 20, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lisa Meyer, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:   February 20, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for January 2018 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
•  WWTP Facility Effluent flows:  73.33 million gallons were treated during January.  The highest 

flow was 3.20 million gallons on the 25th and the lowest flow was 1.60 million 
gallons on the 6th.  The average flow was 2.37 million gallons. Total rainfall for 
January was 7.18 inches.  

 
• WTP   Highest production day was 2,158,000 gallons on January 11, 2018. 

 
• Water System Installed 4 new meters and 4 radio readers. Replaced 6 meters. Completed a 

tracer study at Water Treatment Facility. The tracer study is information on 
chlorine contact time with the water during the time the water is pumped into 
the water distribution system. This information is one of the components used 
when reporting to the Drinking Water Health Division. Began using the 
information on January 26th for reporting.  Repaired a water service on Marion 
Street. Repaired the water service to the restroom at Santiam Park and 
corrected a leak at Pioneer Park. 

 
• Streets  Swept 44 curb miles and collected 17 cubic yards of material.  Replaced street 

signs on Shaff Rd. to the new standards.  Used 480 pounds of cold patch mix to 
fill potholes.      
 

 Parks  Volunteers: 
    Community Service:   Total # of Volunteers = 0, Total # of hours = 0 
    Life skills High School Students:   Total # of Volunteers = 0, Total # of hours = 0 
    Parks Board:  Total # of Volunteers = 6, Total # of hours = 3 
 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling -    2393 Deer Ave. 
774 Fox St., 798 Rabbit Run St., 2197 Deer Ave., 2411 
Deer Ave. 

5 $74,375.00 
 

Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other 6 $3,342.00 
Residential Mechanical 1 -- 

TOTAL 12 $77,717.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $11,288.00 + $733.00 for Mill Creek SDC + Storm 
Water SDC $1990.00 or $2854.00 



 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: February 20, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for January, 2018 

  

Attended Oregon Chapter of American Planning Association annual Legal Issues Workshop 

Prepared supplemental information for application for Community Development Block Grant 
Housing Rehabilitation Grant 

Attended meeting of regional tourism marketing committee 

Attended Oregon Chapter American Planning Association workshop 

Attended meeting on east Marion Co rail service 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 

 



 
Monthly Library Report  Page 1 of 1  
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Janna Moser - Library Director 
 
DATE:   February 19, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  January Library report 
  
 
The library hosted Oregon author Steve Arndt. He is the author of the Oregon travel series Roads 
Less Travelled and has recently released A Compendium of Oregon Ghost Towns, an alphabetical 
listing of over 350 Oregon ghost towns. He gave a great virtual tour through the history of several 
Oregon ghost towns and included directions on how to visit them. We had a fantastic turnout.  
 
Stephanie held our first Paint Night for adults and teens. We are planning to do it again in the fall. 
The teens made meals you can make in the microwave with a coffee cup at our Teen Chef 
program.  
 
Our tech program was Little Bits Coding. This platform introduces kids to programming using Little 
Bits electronic building blocks. We built programmable message boards, hot potato games, and 
musical instruments and then explored coding to make them work.  
 
We hired Julie Adams as our new Outreach Coordinator. She has already started connecting with 
schools and daycares.  We are excited to have her on our team. On Martin Luther King Jr. Day, 
Casle hosted her Free Books at Last event. Over 250 people came, and she gave free books to 166 
children. Local artist, Nathanial Brown, made a charcoal portrait of Martin Luther King Jr. during 
the event.  
 
Over 100 people attended the Library Foundation’s Brews, Bites, and Books event. Thank you to all 
our event sponsors! Three Creeks Brewing partnered with us and presented all the beer. Ricos 
Restaurant & Café, Trexler Farm, Baked And Loaded Potatoes, Wheat. The Baking Company, La 
Esperanza Mexican Bakery & Restaurant, and The Lovin Oven supplied the local bites. Rising Star 
Studios provided wonderful live music, and Young Mobile Entertainment provided sound and 
lighting. It was a fantastic event.   
 
Upcoming events to mark on your calendars: 

● AARP Tax Aide Saturdays 10:00am-2:00pm 
● Teen Tech: Paper Circuits – February 21 at 4:00pm 
● Author visit: Gina Ochsner – February 22 at 7:00pm 
● Dr. Seuss’ Birthday Celebration – March 2 at 4:00pm 



TOTAL CHECKOUTS 12,761 12,616 11,204 11,545 11,029 10,705 11,983 81,843 126,579

Self check out 4,086 4,177 3,703 3,688 3,427 3,472 3,994 26,547 39,895

Library2Go (ebooks +) 910 972 947 970 1022 1,069 1,163 7,053 9,917

Non-resident cards             $89.50 $130.00 $177.00 $175.00 $142.00 $105.00 $332.00 $1,150.50 $2,180.20

Fines: overdue & lost books $1,121.79 $1,917.07 $1,235.71 $600.29 $875.99 $755.19 $1,606.61 $8,112.65 $10,821.37

Room fees                        -$31.25 $25.00 $115.00 $90.00 $197.00 $60.00 $420.00 $875.75 $1,332.00

TOTAL $10,138.90 $14,333.57

In-Person, by phone and computer help 584 364 352 356 360 404 508 2,928 6,035

NEW PATRON CARDS 65 89 58 48 43 57 84 444 796

INTERNET USE 938 1,122 1,066 1,116 880 907 957 6,986 11,398

Children & adults at Children's Programs 761 58 427 414 469 439 754 3,322 7,229

Teens 17 20 32 35 30 34 13 181 150

Adults 57 31 43 47 28 34 155 395 764

Outreach 0 0 0 0 0 0 166 166 4,054

TOTAL 4,064 12,197

MEETING ROOM ATTENDANCE 33 54 91 158 155 110 166 767 1,621

PATRON VISITS 7,645 7,690 6,285 6,585 5,480 5,567 8,280 47,532 79,782

VOLUNTEER HOURS 254 210 170 211 200 187 219 1,450 2,392

2017-2018 Monthly Library  Statistics

July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June 2017-18 YTD 2016-17 YTD

OTHER CIRCULATION SERVICES

INCOME RECEIVED

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE


	CITY OF STAYTON
	M E M O R A N D U M
	FROM:  Lisa Meyer, Administrative Assistant



